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2nd December 2022 

 

 

For the Attention of: Ann Doherty, Chief Executive  

 

Cork City Council 

City Hall,  

Anglesea Street,  

Cork,  

T12 T997 

 

Section 31 of the Planning and Development Act 2000, as amended  

Decision to Issue a Direction to Cork City Council on the Cork City Development Plan 2022 - 

2028 

 

Dear Ann, 

 

I am writing to you to inform you of the following in relation to the Section 31 draft Direction 

issued to Cork City Council on 5th August 2022, and the subsequent consideration by the Office 

of the Planning Regulator (the Office) of your report, dated 29th September 2022 on the twenty-

one submissions received and the seven submissions made directly to the Office in connection 

with the Cork City Development Plan 2022 – 2028, as adopted by the elected members of Cork 

City Council on 27th June 2022. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The Office notified the Minister pursuant to section 31AN(4) of the Planning and Development 

Act 2000 (as amended) on the 24th October 2022 and recommended that I as Minister, issue the 

Direction, with minor amendment to the draft direction.  
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In relation to Part 2(a) of the draft Direction, the Office has noted my subsequent decision not to 

issue a Direction to Cork County Council in respect of a Joint Retail Strategy (JRS) and the reasons 

set out in the Statement of Reasons (dated 28th September 2022). The Office, having regard to 

these reasons, and to the necessity for the two authorities to cooperate in the preparation of the 

JRS, has recommended that effect is not given to Part 2(a) of the draft Direction.  The Office have 

also proposed a minor amendment to correct a typographical error under Part 2(b)(ii) which 

referred to ZO 2 New Residential Neighbourhoods instead of ZO 1 Sustainable Residential 

Neighbourhoods and have proposed to omit the references to NPO 57 and the Flood Guidelines 

from the Statement of Reasons. 

 

A copy of the Notice letter and proposed Final Direction was submitted to the Minister by the 

Office along with supporting documentation, which included the following:  

1) Cork City Council Chief Executive’s Report issued under section 31(8) of the Act (29th 

September 2022); 

2) Copies of seven (7) submissions received by the OPR pursuant to section 31(10)(a) of the 

Act. 

 

There were 34 submissions in total received on the following public consultation on the Draft 

Direction under Section 31. These are as follows: 

 

 7 direct submissions to the Office from elected members;  

 3 submissions to the Council from prescribed authorities (SRA, Department of 

Education and NTA),  

 8 submissions to the Council from elected members; and 

 10 submissions made to the Council by members of the public. 
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Furthermore, I note that your CE report has agreed in respect of Part 2(b) (now (2)a.) to reinstate 

the seven (7) zoning objectives to those set out in the draft Plan and also in relation to Part 2(c) 

(now (2)b.) to delete New Residential Neighbourhood zoning on lands in Carrigrohane. 

 

The Direction contains two parts:  

 Part (2)a. To reinstate seven (7) zoning objectives to that of the Draft Plan;  

 Part (2)b. To delete a zoning objective in Carrigrohane.  

 

Having reviewed and considered the Office’s notification letter pursuant to section 31AN(4) 

including your report on the draft Direction and submissions and the submissions made directly 

by elected members of the Council to the Office, I am of the opinion that the Direction should be 

issued as attached, with minor amendments.   

 

The Development Plan has not been made in a manner consistent with the recommendations of 

the Office and the Development Plan as made fails to set out an overall strategy for the proper 

planning and sustainable development of the area.  

 

Also, the Development Plan as made is inconsistent with National Planning Objective (NPO) 3c 

and Regional Policy Objectives (RPO) 35 and 151 in the RSES on compact growth. The Plan is also 

inconsistent with NPO 31, which promotes strategic planning of and investment in the provision 

of education to reinforce the delivery of sustainable communities and the provisions of RPO 185 

to support a planned approach to location of school facilities such that both proposed locations 

and existing schools are accessible by public transport and active travel modes.   

 

The Plan also fails to have regard to the sequential approach to development in 6.2.3 of 

Development Plans Guidelines for Planning Authorities (2022).  
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Accordingly, Cork City Council should TAKE NOTICE that on 2nd day of December, 2022 I have 

issued a Direction pursuant to Section 31 of the Planning and Development Act 2000 (as 

amended).  

 

Pursuant to Section 31(17) of the Planning and Development Act 2000, as amended, this Direction 

is deemed to have immediate effect and its terms are considered to be incorporated into the 

plan.  

 

A copy of this Direction is attached to this letter. 

 

STEPS TO BE TAKEN 

In light of the foregoing the Council is required, pursuant to Section 31(2) of the Planning and 

Development Act 2000 (as amended) to comply with this Direction so as to rectify the matter in 

a manner that, in my opinion, will ensure that the Cork City Development Plan 2022 sets out an 

overall strategy for proper planning and sustainable development and meets the requirements 

of the Act. 

 

The Council should ensure that the Direction is available for inspection at its offices and on its 

website. 

 

My officials remain available to assist you, as necessary, in complying with the foregoing process. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

_____________________ 

Peter Burke T.D., 
Minister of State with responsibility for Local Government and Planning 
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Copied to: 

 Cathaoirleach, Cork City Council, City Hall, Anglesea Street, Cork, T12 T997 

 Mr. David Kelly, Director, Southern Regional Assembly, Assembly House, Waterford, X91 

F8PC 

 Office of the Planning Regulator, Fourth Floor (West Wing) Park House, Grangegorman, 

191-193A North Circular Road, Dublin 7, D07 EWV4. 

 


